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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI 

EASTERN DIVISION 

DESIRAE LANTRY, individually, and 
on behalf of all others similarly situated, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

CLIENT SERVICES, INC.,  

Defendant. 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

JURY DEMANDED 

CASE NUMBER 4:18-cv-01694

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 

NOW COMES Plaintiff DESIRAE LANTRY (“Plaintiff”), individually, and on behalf of 

all others similarly situated, by and through her undersigned counsel and asserts the following 

Class Action Complaint for violations of the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692, 

et seq., against Defendant CLIENT SERVICES, INC. (“Defendant”): 

INTRODUCTION 

1. This action is brought as a class action. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of

herself and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal 

Rules of Civil Procedure.  

2. This Class Action Complaint has been filed pursuant to the Fair Debt Collection

Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1692, et seq., (“FDCPA”) to recover for violations of the FDCPA 

resulting from a debt collection letter mailed by Defendant to Plaintiff.   

3. A copy of the subject collection letter is attached to this Class Action Complaint as

Exhibit A. 
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DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBJECT COLLECTION LETTER 

4. The date printed on the collection letter is listed October 5, 2017. 

5. October 5, 2017, fell on a Thursday. 

6. On information and belief, and consistent with parties of the debt collection 

industry, the collection letter was not mailed to Plaintiff on October 5, 2017.   

7. Even if Defendant mailed the collection letter to Plaintiff on Thursday, October 5, 

2017, the earliest it could have arrived in Plaintiff’s mail box/slot would be Monday, October 9, 

2017.   

8. The subject collection letter is a “communication” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 

1692a(2) because the letter attempted to settle a purported debt. 

9. The subject collection letter does not specifically identify a particular creditor.  

CHASE. 

10. Instead, the “RE” line of the subject collection letters says “CHASE BANK USA, 

N.A.” 

11. The subject collection letter identifies a “BALANCE DUE” of $2,212.73. 

12. On information and belief, Chase has charged off the above identified balance. 

13. The subject collection letter starts off with the following sentence.  “[w]e are 

offering you a settlement amount of $443.00, to settle this CHASE BANK USA, N.A. account for 

less than the balance due.*”  See Exhibit A. 

14. The asterisk at the end of the first sentence of the collection letters leads to the 

following sentence which states: 

“*If we settle this debt with you for less than the full outstanding balance, Chase 
may offer you less favorable terms in the future for some Chase products or 
services, or may deny your application.” 

See Exhibit A. 

Case: 4:18-cv-01694   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 10/03/18   Page: 2 of 17 PageID #: 2



3 
 

PARTIES, JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

15. Plaintiff is a citizen of California and is domiciled in California. 

16. Plaintiff is a “consumer” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(3).  

17. Defendant is incorporated and headquartered in Saint Charles, Missouri.  

18. Defendant is regularly engaged in the collection of consumer debts. 

19. Defendant is a “debt collector” as defined by 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6). 

20. Defendant was conducting substantial and continued debt collection related 

activities within the 50 States that comprise the United States, including the State of California, 

and continues to do so. 

21. This Court has federal subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331 and 

15 U.S.C. § 1692k(d). 

22. Venue is proper under 28 U.S.C. §1391(b) because a substantial part of the events 

or omissions giving rise to the claim occurred in this Judicial District (the creation and transmission 

of the subject letter) and Defendant is incorporated and headquartered in this District. 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

23. The subject collection letter is a standard for letter utilized by Defendant. 

24. The subject collection letter is a standard for letter that has been mailed by 

Defendant to consumers in the United States and the State of California. 

25. The subject collection letter is a standard for letter that has been mailed by 

Defendant to consumers to collect consumer debts allegedly owed to Chase. 

26. When Defendant mailed the subject collection letter to Plaintiff, Defendant was 

attempting to collect a consumer debt as defined by the FDCPA because the alleged debt was 

incurred for personal and/or household items. 
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27. When Defendant mailed the subject collection letter to Plaintiff, Defendant was 

attempting to collect a debt that Plaintiff allegedly owed to Chase. 

28. Alternatively, on information and belief, when Defendant mailed the subject 

collection letter to Plaintiff, Defendant was attempting to collect a debt that Defendant or another 

creditor owned. 

29. Plaintiff contends that following language violated the FDCPA: 

“* If we settle this debt with you for less than the full outstanding balance, 
Chase may offer you less favorable terms in the future for some Chase 
products or services, or may deny your application.” 

30. The quoted language violated the FDCPA for the following reasons. 

31. The above quoted language attempted to influence Plaintiff’s thought process with 

regard to paying off the subject debt by informing her that it would not be beneficial for her to 

settle the debt by paying less than the amount she allegedly owed. 

32. The above quoted language attempted to influence Plaintiff’s thought process with 

regard to paying off the subject debt by informing her that it would be beneficial for her to pay the 

amount she allegedly owed. 

33. The above quoted language attempted to influence Plaintiff’s thought process with 

regard to paying off this debt by warning Plaintiff that if she paid “less than the full outstanding 

balance, Chase may offer you less favorable terms in the future for some Chase products or 

services.” 

34. The above quoted language attempted to influence Plaintiff’s thought process with 

regard to paying off this debt by warning Plaintiff that if she paid “less than the full outstanding 

balance” Chase “may deny your application.” 

35. This language was intended to give debtors like Plaintiff a confusing, Hobson’s 

Choice.   
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36. On information and belief, this above quoted statement is false, misleading and/or 

deceptive because Chase would not have offered Plaintiff more favorable terms if she paid off her 

entire debt.  

37. Rather, by falling behind on payments, having her account charged off and sent to 

outside collections, it is highly plausible that Plaintiff was not in good standing with Chase. 

38. Because Plaintiff behind on payments, had her account charged off and sent to 

outside collections, it is highly plausible that Plaintiff could never be in good standing with Chase, 

even if she fully paid off the subject debt. 

39. Accordingly, by falling behind on payments, having her account charged off and 

sent to outside collections, it is highly plausible that Chase would not offer or provide Plaintiff 

with any loan, product or services from Chase, even if she paid back the full amount of her debt.   

40. Simply stated, on information and belief, even if an outside collection agency 

would have collected the full amount owed, because the amount collected would have been 

reduced by up to 33% as a result of Defendant’s contingency-based collection fee, it is highly 

plausible that Chase would be unlikely to offer Plaintiff any loan, product or service in the future.   

41. Additionally, the quoted language was false, misleading and deceptive because the 

language talks in hypotheticals – despite urging consumers to pay the full amount of the debt. 

42. For example, if a consumer desired to save money by settling the debt for less than 

the amount owed, she/he would be confused, mislead and/or deceived by the letter’s ambiguous 

statement that Chase “may” respond to the lesser payment amount by offering the consumer less 

favorable terms for some unspecified Chase products.  

43. By way of further example, if a consumer desired to save money by settling the 

debt for less than the amount owed, she/he would be confused, mislead and/or deceived by the 
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letter’s ambiguous statement that Chase “may” respond to the lesser payment amount by offering 

the consumer less favorable terms for some unspecified Chase services.  

44. The letter purposefully does not make the following clear statement:  “if you pay 

the full amount owed, rather than the discounted settlement offer, Chase will offer you more 

favorable terms in the future for some Chase products or services.” 

45. As a result of this false, misleading and deceptive language, a consumer could be 

misled into thinking that she/he would in fact receive more favorable terms in the future for some 

Chase products or services when this would not be the case. 

46. In summary, the above quoted language falsely, misleadingly and deceptively 

described what will happen if a consumer pays the “full outstanding balance.”    

47. Alternatively, if a consumer desired to save money by settling the debt for less than 

the amount owed, the above quoted language falsely, misleadingly and deceptively suggested 

Chase “may” respond to the lesser payment amount by denying the consumer’s application for 

some unspecified Chase product or service 

48. The letter was drafted to convey to recipients that Chase would offer “less favorable 

terms in the future for some Chase products or services” unless recipient paid the total amount 

she/he owed. 

49. When Chase presented the quoted language to Plaintiff, it was Chase’s desire to 

receive the largest recovery for each amount owed.   

50. When Chase presented the quoted language to Plaintiff, it was Chase’s desire to 

discourage recipients from paying the discounted offer. 

51. The letter was drafted to convey to recipients that Chase would not “deny” an 

“application” if Plaintiff and the proposed class members would pay every cent owed. 
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52. On information and belief, Chase would not “offer less favorable terms in the future 

for some Chase products or services” if a debtor paid less than the total amount owed.   

53. On information and belief, Chase would not “deny [an] application” if a consumer 

paid less than the total amount owed.   

54. On information and belief, Chase would not offer more favorable “terms in the 

future for some Chase products or services” if a debtor paid the total amount owed.   

55. On information and belief, Chase would not offer more favorable “terms in the 

future for some Chase products or services” if a debtor paid the total amount owed because of the 

fact that the debt has been charged off. 

56. On information and belief, Chase would “deny [an] application” if a debtor paid 

the total amount owed.   

57. On information and belief, Chase would “deny [an] application” if a debtor paid 

the total amount owed because of the fact that the debt has been charged off. 

58. Under the language utilized by Defendant, the language was intended (or at least 

had the result) to urge debtors to settle for the full amount owed.   

59. The quoted language violates Section 1692e of the FDCPA because the language  

is confusing, false, deceptive and/or misleading to the Plaintiff and is likely to be viewed the same 

way by the “least sophisticated consumer.”  

60. The quoted language violates Section 1692f of the FDCPA because the confusing 

language is an “unfair or unconscionable means to collect or attempt to collect” a debt. 

61. Because the quoted language would plausibly lead class members to pay the full 

amount of the debt owed, the quoted language would benefit Defendant to the extent that 

Defendant would earn higher commissions if debtors paid the full amount owed. 
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62. On information and belief, it is plausible that class members were confused by the 

letter and did not pay any amount of the debt identified on the letter. 

63. It is plausible that class members may have had to consult with legal counsel in 

order to ascertain their rights under the FDCPA. 

64. It is plausible that class members were confused by the letter and chose to pay the 

full amount of their debt to avoid having Chase offer them “less favorable terms in the future for 

some Chase products or services[.]” 

65.  It is plausible that class members were confused by the letter and chose to pay the 

full amount of their debt to avoid having Chase “deny their application.” 

66. The subject language was confusing, false, deceptive and/or misleading violates the 

FDCPA because Chase would be unlikely to grant a class member more “favorable terms in the 

future for some Chase products or services” if the class member paid the debt in full. 

67. The subject language was confusing, false, deceptive and/or misleading violates the 

FDCPA.  Chase would be unlikely to grant a class member more “favorable terms in the future for 

some Chase products or services” if the class member paid the debt in full because of the fact that 

the class member incurred a previously unpaid debt, the debt was charged off, or alternatively, the 

debt would never be fully recouped because Chase would have to pay a collection fee to Defendant 

– if Chase still owned the debt. 

68. The subject language was confusing, false, deceptive and/or misleading violates the 

FDCPA because Chase would be unlikely to grant a class member’s application if the class 

member paid the debt in full.   

69. The subject language was confusing, false, deceptive and/or misleading violates the 

FDCPA.  Chase would be unlikely to grant a class member’s application if the class member paid 
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the debt in full because of the fact that the class member incurred a previously unpaid debt, the 

debt was charged off, or alternatively, the debt would never be fully recouped because Chase 

would have to pay a collection fee to Defendant – if Chase still owned the debt. 

70. In the below quoted sentence, the collection letter does not define the word 

“Chase”: 

“*If we settle this debt with you for less than the full outstanding balance, 
Chase may offer you less favorable terms in the future for some Chase 
products or services, or may deny your application.” 
 

71. An unsophisticated consumer would be confused by the undefined use of the word 

“Chase” in the above quoted language.   

72. Nowhere on the collection letter is the word “Chase” limited to just Chase Bank 

USA, N.A. 

73.  “Chase” is listed as a trademark of JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. on the website 

https:///chase.com 

74. JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. conducts business as “Chase Bank.” 

75. Chase Bank, N.A. operates as a subsidiary of J.P. Morgan Equity Holding, Inc. 

76. JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JPMorgan Chase & 

Co. 

77. A true and accurate screen capture of the bottom section of the website 

https:///chase.com taken on October 3, 2018, reveals the following: 
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78. The website https:///chase.com lists various types of “accounts” as depicted in a 

true and accurate screen capture taken on October 3, 2018: 

 

79. The use of the undefined word “Chase” in the phrase “Chase may offer you less 

favorable terms in the future for some Chase products or services, or may deny your application” 

Case: 4:18-cv-01694   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 10/03/18   Page: 10 of 17 PageID #: 10



11 
 

implicates an unlimited assortment of financial products that are broadly and loosely associated 

with the name “Chase.”   

80. The above quoted phrase is not limited to products associated with the underlying 

account, with “CHASE BANK USA, N.A.” 

81. The use of the undefined word “Chase” in the above quoted phrase would plausibly 

cause a unsophisticated consumer to be confused by the undefined use of the word “Chase” in the 

above quoted language.   

82. The use of the undefined word “Chase” in the above quoted phrase would plausibly 

cause a unsophisticated consumer to pay off the entire amount of the subject debt (rather than 

accept the proposed settlement amount) in order to not be deprived of undefined “Chase products 

or services.” 

83. The use of the undefined word “Chase” in the above quoted phrase would plausibly 

cause a unsophisticated consumer to pay off the entire amount of the subject debt (rather than 

accept the proposed settlement amount) in order to not be to have some “application” for “Chase 

products or services” be denied. 

COUNT I - 15 U.S.C. § 1692e 

84. Plaintiff incorporates the above paragraphs into this Count. 

85. As alleged above, Plaintiff asserts that the quoted language violated of 15 U.S.C. § 

1692e because the language constitutes a false, deceptive or misleading representation or means 

to collect a debt. 

86. Because the above quoted language violated the FDCPA, Plaintiff and the proposed 

class are entitled to declaratory relief, statutory damages and attorney’s fees. 
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COUNT II - 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(2)(A) 

87. Plaintiff incorporates the above paragraphs into this Count. 

88. As alleged above, Plaintiff asserts that the quoted language violated 15 U.S.C. § 

1692e(2)(A) because the language constitutes a false representation regarding character or legal 

status of the alleged debts. 

89. Contrary to Defendant’s representation, it was not required by the FDCPA to 

include the quoted language in order to comply with the FDCPA.   

90. Accordingly, the language, by being included below two other required disclosures 

(“This is an attempt to collect a debt and any information obtained will be used for that purpose” 

and “This communication is from a debt collector”) – strongly implied to Plaintiff and others that 

the language was a legal disclosure required by the FDCPA - which must be made to consumers 

when this is not the case. 

91. Because the above quoted language was not required to comply with the FDCPA, 

it constitutes false representation regarding character or legal status of the alleged debts and the 

impact that partial or full payment may have on a debt. 

92. By making a false representation regarding character or legal status of the alleged 

debts and the impact that partial or full payment may have on a debt, Defendant violated the 

FDCPA. 

93. Because the above quoted language violated the FDCPA, Plaintiff and the proposed 

class are entitled to declaratory relief, statutory damages and attorney’s fees. 

COUNT III - 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(10) 

94. Plaintiff incorporates the above paragraphs into this Count. 
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95. For the reasons set forth above, Plaintiff asserts that the quoted language violated 

of 15 U.S.C. § 1692e(10) of the FDCPA because the language constitutes a false representation or 

deceptive means to collect or attempt to collect a debt. 

96. Because the above quoted language violated the FDCPA, Plaintiff and the proposed 

class are entitled to declaratory relief, statutory damages and attorney’s fees 

COUNT IV - 15 U.S.C. § 1692f 

97. Plaintiff incorporates the above paragraphs into this Count. 

98. For the reasons set forth above, Plaintiff asserts that the quoted language violated 

of 15 U.S.C. § 1692f because the language constitutes the use of an unfair or unconscionable means 

to collect a debt. 

99. Because the above quoted language violated the FDCPA, Plaintiff and the proposed 

class are entitled to the relief set forth below. 

CLASS ALLEGATIONS 

100. Plaintiff incorporates the above paragraphs into this Section.  

101. This action is brought as a class action. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of 

herself and on behalf of all other persons similarly situated pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal 

Rules of Civil Procedure.  

102. Defendant sent more than forty identical standard form letters with the above 

quoted language to consumers with addresses within the United States.  

103. Defendant sent more than forty identical standard form letters with the above 

quoted language to consumers with addresses within the State of California.  
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104. Defendant sent more than forty identical standard form letters with the above 

quoted language to consumers with addresses within the confines of the United States District 

Court for the Central District of California. 

105. On information and belief, more than forty persons with addresses within the State 

of California paid the full balance owed on the collection letter that they received after they 

received a collection letter from Defendant containing the phrase “[i]f we settle this debt with you 

for less than the full outstanding balance, Chase may offer you less favorable terms in the future 

for some Chase products or services, or may deny your application.” 

106. There are common questions of law and fact between Plaintiff’s claims and those 

of the class.   

107. Common issues predominate over any issues involving only individual class 

members.  

108. The principal issues are:  (a) whether Defendant's use of the phrase “[i]f we settle 

this debt with you for less than the full outstanding balance, Chase may offer you less favorable 

terms in the future for some Chase products or services, or may deny your application” violates 

the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act; (b) whether class members paid their debts in full because 

of or as a result of the above quoted language; and (c) whether the choice of the word “Chase” in 

the quoted language was confusing, deceptive and/or misleading in violation of the FDCPA. 

109. Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the class members, as her claims are based upon the 

same facts and legal theories as the proposed class members. 

110. Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the proposed Class.  

111. Plaintiff has retained counsel with experience in litigating, defending and settling 

consumer lawsuits and complex legal issues, and class actions. 
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112. Neither the Plaintiff nor her attorneys have any interests, which might cause them 

not to vigorously pursue this action. 

113. With regard to the collection letter’s use of the phrase, “[i]f we settle this debt with 

you for less than the full outstanding balance, Chase may offer you less favorable terms in the 

future for some Chase products or services, or may deny your application” (the “Disclosure”), the 

proposed Disclosure class can be defined as follows:  

(a) all persons who were sent a collection letter in substantially the same 
form letter as subject collection letter or a collection letter that uses the 
phrase “[i]f we settle this debt with you for less than the full outstanding 
balance, Chase may offer you less favorable terms in the future for some 
Chase products or services, or may deny your application”; to (b) addresses 
within the State of California; and (c) within one year of the filing of this 
Class Action Complaint and until such time as Defendant no longer uses the 
quoted language. 

 

114. On information and belief, Defendant received payments in full from putative class 

members of the Disclosure Class because of or as a result of the above quoted language. 

115. Accordingly, a sub-class of the proposed Disclosure Class can be defined as 

follows:  

(a) all persons who were sent a collection letter in substantially the same 
form letter as subject collection letter or a collection letter that uses the 
phrase “[i]f we settle this debt with you for less than the full outstanding 
balance, Chase may offer you less favorable terms in the future for some 
Chase products or services, or may deny your application”; to (b) addresses 
within the State of California; (c) where persons made payments in full 
relative to the debts referenced in the subject collection letters (d) within 
one year of the filing of this Class Action Complaint and until such time as 
Defendant no longer uses the quoted language. 

 

116. The identities of class members in both proposed classes are readily ascertainable 

from Defendant’s records. 
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117. This action has been brought, and may properly be maintained, as a class action 

pursuant to the provisions of Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure because the use of a 

class action is superior to the other available means for the fair and efficient adjudication of this 

controversy because individual joinder of all members would be impracticable.  

118. Class action treatment will permit a large number of similarly situated persons to 

prosecute their common claims in a single forum efficiently and without unnecessary duplication 

of effort and expense that individual actions would engender. 

119. Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(l)(A) of the Federal Rules of Civil 

Procedure is appropriate because adjudications with respect to individual members create a risk of 

inconsistent or varying adjudications which could establish incompatible standards of conduct for 

Defendant who, on information and belief, collects debts throughout the United States of America.  

120. Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(2) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 

is also appropriate in that a determination that the above stated claims, violate provisions of the 

Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, and is tantamount to declaratory relief and any monetary relief 

under the FDCPA would be merely incidental to that determination. 

121. Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 

is also appropriate in that the questions of law and fact common to members of the proposed Class 

predominate over any questions affecting an individual member, such that class action is superior 

to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of the controversy.  

122. Defendant has acted, or failed to act, on grounds generally applicable to the Rule 

23(b)(l)(A) and 23(b)(2) Classes, thereby making appropriate final injunctive relief with respect 

to the Class as a whole.  

Case: 4:18-cv-01694   Doc. #:  1   Filed: 10/03/18   Page: 16 of 17 PageID #: 16



17 
 

123. Depending on the outcome of further investigation and discovery, Plaintiff may, at 

the time of class certification motion, seek to certify one or more classes only as to particular issues 

pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(c)(4). 

JURY DEMAND 

124. Plaintiff hereby demands a trial of this action by jury. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff respectfully requests judgment as follows: certify this action as a 

class action; appoint Plaintiff as Class Representatives of the Class; appoint her attorneys as Class 

Counsel; find that Defendant’s actions violate the FDCPA; award damages against Defendant 

pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k; award Plaintiff’s attorneys’ fees pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1692k; 

issue declaratory and injunctive relief; and grant all other relief that the Court determines is just 

and proper. 

Respectfully submitted,  
 
Plaintiff DESIRAE LANTRY, individually, and on 
behalf of all others similarly situated, 
 
By:    /s/ Marwan Daher    

 
Marwan Daher 
mdahern@sulaimanlaw.com 
James Vlahakis* application pending 
jvlahakis@sulaimanlaw.com 
SULAIMAN LAW GROUP, LTD. 

  2500 South Highland Avenue, Suite 200 
  Lombard, Illinois 60148 
  (630) 581-8181 telephone 
  (630) 575-8188 facsimile 
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3451 Harry S Truman Blvd. 
Saint Charles, MO 63301-4047 

RE: CHASE BANK USA, N.A. 

Office Hours (Central Time} 
Monday-Thursday: 8am-8pm 

Friday: 8am-5pm 
Saturday: 7am-11am 

Sunday: Closed 

PHONE: 877-288-9903 ACCOUNT NUMBER: XXXXXXXXXXXX3900 
BALANCE DUE: $2,212.73 
REFERENCE NUMBER:  DATE: 10/5/2017 

We are offering you a settlement amount of $443.00, to settle this CHASE BANK USA, N.A. account for less than the 
balance due.* This offer is valid until 10/25/2017. If payment in full of the settlement amount is not received in our office by 
this date, this offer will be withdrawn and will be deemed null and void. We are not obligated to renew this offer. If you are 
unable to pay the settlement amount in full by this due date, please contact our office for alternative payment options which 
may be available to you. 

We look foiward to working with you in resolving this matter. 

Jerry Petersen 

*If we settle this debt with you for less than the full outstanding balance, Chase may offer you less favorable terms in the
future for some Chase products or services, or may deny your application.

THIS COMMUNICATION IS FROM A DEBT COLLECTOR. THIS IS AN ATTEMPT TO COLLECT A DEBT. 
ANY INFORMATION OBTAINED WILL BE USED FOR THAT PURPOSE. 

FOR IMPORTANT RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES WHICH MIGHT APPLY TO YOUR STATE OF RESIDENCE, 
PLEASE SEE BELOW OR REVERSE SIDE (IF FAXED THEN FOLLOWING PAGE). 

� 
Send your payment in the enclosed envelope using the

remittance coupon below. 

llil Pay-by-Phone: 1-877-552-5905

Do not send correspondence to this address. 

PO Box 1586 
Saint Peters, MO 63376 

, I I 11
11

1
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1II h11111111111
1
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��.it:·; DESIRAE LANTRY
� 9008 S 8TH AVE 

INGLEWOOD CA 90305-2730 

• Online: www.csiconsumercenter.com

s
If you are unable to pay the above settlement offer in 
full, contact our office at 877-288-9903 for payment 

options, which may be available to you. 

IIMlll!lll  
_____ _____

Checks Payable To: Client Services, Inc. 

:l!l!!!!:!lll■!l!:11�:l!ll!ll!ll!1!!l!!lll!l!:j:!!!!l!!!!l!l!:!!!l!l!:!:!\llllll!l!l:j!ll!lj!1l!llllllll!ll:ll!ll:!l!:!:l:llli!fl:ll!:lll:l:!l!ill!ll!l!!:l:!l!l!lll!:!lll!:l!l!ll!!!f!lllll!!!\l!llilll!l!l!lll!:!lil
CLIENT SERVICES, INC. 
3451 HARRY S. TRUMAN BLVD 
ST. CHARLES MO 63301-4047 

11•111•1 •11•1•111• 1111• 1••• 11111111•111•11111 •11111 ••11• 1 •111111•
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI

)
                                                 , )

)
Plaintiff, )

)
v. ) Case No.

)
, )

)
       Defendant, )

)

ORIGINAL FILING FORM

THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETED AND VERIFIED BY THE FILING PARTY
WHEN INITIATING A NEW CASE.

THIS SAME CAUSE, OR A SUBSTANTIALLY EQUIVALENT COMPLAINT, WAS

PREVIOUSLY FILED IN THIS COURT AS CASE NUMBER        

AND ASSIGNED TO THE HONORABLE JUDGE .

THIS CAUSE IS RELATED, BUT IS NOT SUBSTANTIALLY EQUIVALENT TO ANY 

PREVIOUSLY FILED COMPLAINT.  THE RELATED CASE NUMBER IS                                          AND 

THAT CASE WAS ASSIGNED TO THE HONORABLE               .  THIS CASE MAY, 

THEREFORE, BE OPENED AS AN ORIGINAL PROCEEDING.

NEITHER THIS SAME CAUSE, NOR A SUBSTANTIALLY EQUIVALENT

COMPLAINT, HAS BEEN PREVIOUSLY FILED IN THIS COURT, AND THEREFORE

MAY BE OPENED AS AN ORIGINAL PROCEEDING.

The undersigned affirms that the information provided above is true and correct.

Date:
Signature of Filing Party

DESIRAE LANTRY, individually,
and on behalf of all others
similarly situated

4:18-cv-01694

CLIENT SERVICES, INC.,

10/03/2018 /s/ Marwan R. Daher
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09)  Summons in a Civil Action

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
for the

__________ District of __________ 

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Plaintiff

v. Civil Action No.

Defendant

SUMMONS IN A CIVIL ACTION

To: (Defendant’s name and address)

A lawsuit has been filed against you.

Within 21 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it) — or 60 days if you
are the United States or a United States agency, or an officer or employee of the United States described in Fed. R. Civ.
P. 12 (a)(2) or (3) — you must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached complaint or a motion under Rule 12 of
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  The answer or motion must be served on the plaintiff or plaintiff’s attorney,
whose name and address are:

If you fail to respond, judgment by default will be entered against you for the relief demanded in the complaint. 
You also must file your answer or motion with the court.

CLERK OF COURT

Date:
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk

Eastern District of Missouri

DESIRAE LANTRY, individually, and on behalf of all
others similarly situated

4:18-cv-01694
CLIENT SERVICES, INC.,

Client Services, Inc.
c/o Registered Agent
CSC- Lawyers Incorporating Service Company
221 Bolivar Street
Jefferson City, MO 65101

Marwan R. Daher
Sulaiman Law Group, Ltd.
2500 South Highland Avenue, Suite 200
Lombard, IL 60148
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AO 440 (Rev. 12/09)  Summons in a Civil Action (Page 2)

Civil Action No.

PROOF OF SERVICE
(This section should not be filed with the court unless required by Fed. R. Civ. P. 4 (l))

This summons for (name of individual and title, if any)

was received by me on (date) .

I personally served the summons on the individual at (place)

on (date) ; or

I left the summons at the individual’s residence or usual place of abode with (name)

, a person of suitable age and discretion who resides there,

on (date) , and mailed a copy to the individual’s last known address; or

I served the summons on (name of individual) , who is

 designated by law to accept service of process on behalf of (name of organization)

on (date) ; or

I returned the summons unexecuted because ; or

Other (specify):

.

My fees are $ for travel and $ for services, for a total of $ .

I declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true.

Date:
Server’s signature

Printed name and title

Server’s address

Additional information regarding attempted service, etc:

4:18-cv-01694

0.00
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ClassAction.org
This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this 
post: Client Services Facing Lawsuit Over Allegedly Deceptive Collection Practices

https://www.classaction.org/news/client-services-facing-lawsuit-over-allegedly-deceptive-collection-practices



